ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 6, 2011
8:03 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Senator Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Gary Stevens

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Cathy G essel

COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 107

"An Act making special appropriations for new engineering
buildings for the University of Alaska in Anchorage and
Fai r banks. "

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 107

SHORT TI TLE: APPROP: UNIV. ENG NEERI NG BUI LDI NGS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) ELLIS

03/ 21/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 21/ 11 (S) EDC, FIN
04/ 06/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

ADAM TAYLOR, Intern

Senat or Johnny Ellis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 107 on behal f of the sponsor.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- April 6, 2011



DALE NELSON, Memrber

Anerican Society of Gvil Engineers (ASCE) and
Chai r

Legi sl ative Liaison Conmittee

Al aska Professional Design Council (APDC)

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 107.

GRANT BAKER, Associ ate Dean

School of Engi neering

Uni versity of Al aska Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 107.

DOUG GCERI NG, Dean

Col | ege of Engi neering and M nes

Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 107.

ROB LANG, Dean

School of Engi neering

University of Al aska Anchorage (UAA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 107.

JOHN AHO, Chair

Advi sory Board

School of Engi neering

Uni versity of Al aska Anchorage (UAA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 107.

ROBERT BALDW N, Vice Chair

Al aska Sci ence and Technol ogy and

Director

Institute of Electrical and El ectronic Engineers (I|EEE)
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 107.

JACK W LBUR, President

Desi gn Al aska

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 107.

STEPHANI E YOUNG, St udent
Col | ege of Engi neering and M ni ng
Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- Apri

6, 2011



Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 107.

St ephen Nuss, Vice President

Anchor age Branch

American Society of Cvil Engineering (ASCE)
Anchor age Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:

ANNE BROCOKS, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 107.

LEVERETTE HOOVER, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 107.

JIMLITTLE, Cvil Engineer and
Menmber

Advi sory Counci

Col | ege of Engi neering and M ni ng
Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks
Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 107.

MARGARET YNGVE, Student

Col | ege of Engi neering and M ni ng
University of Al aska Fairbanks
Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 107.

BEN LARUE, G oup QOperations Manager
Si enens Bui | di ng Technol ogy
Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 107.

Rl CHARD HUGHES, Menber

Advi sory and Devel opnent Counci
Col | ege of Engi neering and M ni ng
Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks
Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 107.

ROGER BURGGRAF, representing hinself
Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 107.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3-

Apri

6, 2011



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:03: 08 AM

COCHAIR JOE THOVAS called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:03 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators French, Davis, Co-Chair Meyer and Co-Chair
Thonas.

SB 107- APPROP: UNI V. ENG NEERI NG BUI LDI NGS

8:03:45 AM

CO CHAI R THOMAS announced the consideration of SB 107

8:04:14 AM

ADAM TAYLOR, Intern for Senator Johnny Ellis, sponsor of SB 107,
said the purpose of the bill includes the appropriations for

expanding the engineering program at the University of Al aska
Fai rbanks (UAF) and the University of Alaska Anchorage (UAA). He
noted that the 2010 Ira Fink and Associates, Incorporated study
hi ghlighted the shortage of space at each university that is
required for a successful engineering program [summary of study
included in docunent packet]. He explained that UAA has a
deficit of approximately 78,000 square feet and UAF has a
deficit 54,000 square feet. Based on the space needs detailed in
the study, SB 107 appropriates $50 nillion for expanding the
engineering facility at UAF and $75 mllion for UAA. He stressed
that there is a demand for engineers in both communities and
significant space needs at both canpuses.

He spoke to the background of the bill. He explained that G ant
Baker, Associate Dean for the School of Engineering at UAF, has
pointed out the shortage of engineers in Al aska, the scale of
i ndustry demand for "Alaskan grown" engineers, and the resources
required for the University of Alaska (UA) to neet this denmand.
He added that sonme conpanies are resorting to sending Alaska's
engi neering design work outside of the state. However, outside
engineering firms often do not have the technical know edge or
foundation in arctic or northern engineering, which is critica
to the work the state would like done. Only 18 percent of
engi neers in Al aska have degrees from UA and 35 percent are not
residents. He noted that, according to the Departnent of Labor
and Wor kforce Devel opnent (DOLWD), the shortage of engineers is
expected to grow.

He said in 2006 the UA Board of Regents set a priority to double

the annual engineering graduates by 2014 and the |egislature
needs to take steps in order to help UA reach that goal. He

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- April 6, 2011



noted that since 2006 the enrollment at UAF' s engineering
program has tripled and UAA's has doubled. However, current
facilities cannot accommpdate the current enrollnment. The
appropriations included in the bill are developed to facilitate
the design and construction of these facilities and provide the
resource for the state to "grow their own engi neers."

8:07:53 AM

DALE NELSON, Menber, Anerican Society of G vil Engineers (ASCE)
and Chair, Legislative Liaison Conmttee, Al aska Professional
Design Council (APDC), testified in support of SB 107. He said
he has practiced civil engineering in the state for over 40
years. He said the ASCE has 800 nenbers in Al aska and 140, 000
menbers throughout the United States. He noted that one of
ASCE's goals is the continuation of engineering education. In
regards to APDC, there are over 1,500 nenbers. APDC continues to
work closely with each nenber society and with the Architect,
Engi neers, and Land Surveyors Board.

He said that there are a lot of engineers that do not "stick
around” Alaska; if engineers are trained in the state then they
are nore know edgeable of the environment and conditions and
nore likely to stay. There is a demand for new engineering
students, however in order to properly train and educate
students adequate space is needed, he expl ai ned.

He showed the committee an exanple of an advertisenent from
Conoco Philips placed in the Juneau Enpire, which focused on an
i ndi vi dual attending UAA's School of Engineering.

8:15: 01 AM

GRANT BAKER, Associate Dean, School of Engineering, University
of Al aska Anchorage, testified in support of SB 107. He drew the
commttee's attention to a packet produced by UAA which summed
up its argunment and support for the bill [packet included in the
docunent packet, titled: Support New UA Engi neering Buildings SB
107]. He explained that he is here to represent the students and
i ndustries that need engineers. He noted that there are 1,000
current engi neering students, 100's of al umi t hat have
graduated, and at |east 100 industries that need engineers. He

explained that industries are encountering the issue of
i ndividuals comng to retirement age and there is no one to take
their place. This wll only becone nore of an issue in the

future, he added.

He read the following fromthe packet [l ocated on page 3]:

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- April 6, 2011



In a state as underdevel oped as Al aska, the need for

engi neers is cruci al . From devel opi ng nat ur al
resources to building infrastructure to creating
comuni cations systens that link renote villages, the

jobs that engineers perform are required to nove
Al aska forward.

He explained that the engineering plan is to double the nunber
of engineers at UA to at |least 200 per year; currently UA is
about half-way there. He noted that the issue is seniors have
beconme "bottl enecked" in the program because UA doesn't have the
| ab space needed in order for these individuals to graduate.

He explained that the study done by Ira Fink showed that the
grow h of UAA and UAF has been trenmendous. For exanple, UAA had
150 majors in 2005 and 650 in 2010. However, there has not been
an increase in space. He noted that UAF is also experiencing a
simlar need for space. He said that UA is also observing, in
the past year, an added wave of students that are comng from
t he engi neering academ es from hi gh school s.

He continued that DOLMWD s Al aska Economic Trends report is also
included in the packet provided. He paraphrased the follow ng
fromthe report [l ocated on page 25 of the docunent]:

Al t oget her, nmore than 81,000 projected STEM
[ science, technol ogy, engineering, and math] openings
will need to be fill ed.

In 2008, the highest STEM enpl oynent was engi neering,
life and physical sciences, and conputer and math
science, in that order.

He continued on page 26:

Because an educated workforce is fundanental to STEM
j obs, enphasis at the national level is on inproving
mat h and sci ence educati on for student s in
ki ndergarten through 12th grade.

He said SB 107 does not only help university students but it
hel ps K-12 students as well because it gives individuals a place
to go after graduating and an incentive to stay in STEM and
| earn nore science and mat hemati cs.

He read the following from page 28 of the report:

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- April 6, 2011



Al aska's STEM workforce is aging, and replacenents

will be needed as these workers retire. About 41
percent of Al aska's STEM workers were ages 45 to 64 in
2008, and nany of these workers will retire in the

near future.
Finally, he read the closing paragraph of the Trends report:

The contributions that engineers, scientists, and
ot her STEM workers nake to the state are nultifaceted,
as they solve problenms and bolster the econony
t hroughout Al aska's industries.

He stressed that SB 107 secures a future of Alaska and is an
econonm ¢ stinmulus and powerhouse for generating the econonic
grom h of the state.

8:23:03 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked whether the two buildings woul d get UAA and
UAF up to its 200 graduate per year goal or beyond that.

MR. BAKER replied yes; the space would neet the absolute m ninmum
current needs of students, as of the fall of 2009. He noted that
he believes UAF and UAA could graduate nore than 200 students
per year; however it would stretch the facilities.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the workforce could absorb the 200
graduat es per year.

MR. BAKER answered yes; at least 200. He referred back to the
Al aska Economc Trends report, which discussed the current
engi neering occupations available in Al aska. He noted that
engineering training is very versatile and individuals can go
into other areas that are inportant to the state as well.

8:24:57 AM

DOUG GOERI NG, Dean, College of Engineering and M nes, University
of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF) testified in support of SB 107. He
t hanked the conmttee for the past facility planning funds that
were requested through the UA Board of Regents. He referred the
conmittee to the UA Engineering Plan for 2010, which is
available on the UA website and was sunmarized in the packet
[ di scussed previously by M. Baker]. He explained that the plan
does conclude that there are significant space deficits at both
UAF and UAA, based on current enrollment and research needs. The
facility planning effort has been necessitated by the
unprecedented growth at UAF in both engineering enrollnments and

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- April 6, 2011



research activity. He noted that following the engineering
initiative put into place in 2006, the college's enrollnent has
increased by 70 percent. UAA s enrollnent has also increased
dramatically. He said that he believes this increase is due to
the growmh in recruitnment and outreach efforts and increased
focus on STEM education in the United States. He noted that this
increased enrollnment currently adds a |ot of pressure on the
staff and facility. He reiterated Senator Ellis' comrents, nmade
previously on the Senate floor: that it is inportant to have
engi neers who know the state and are not afraid of the climte
and who know about arctic engineering principals.

8:28:19 AM

ROB LANG Dean, School of Engineering, University of Al aska
Anchorage, testified in support of SB 107. He said the need for
these facilities is as strong as it was |ast year when he cane
before the conmttee. He thanked the commttee for their past
support. He said he believes having strong facilities will draw
students to UAF and UAA and that there is also a large increase
in interest from high school students. He opined that these
facilities could make a significant difference for the state and
the quality of life for Al askans.

8:30: 50 AM

JOHN AHO, Chair, Advisory Board, School of  Engi neeri ng,
University of Alaska Anchorage (UAA), testified in support of SB
107. He provided a summary of his background, which included 35
years of engineering in Alaska. He said UAA has an inadequate
engineering facility, which could result in the |loss of
graduating high school seniors and current university students
to outside wuniversities. He noted that, in his experience,
hiring residents educated in Alaska is a wn-win situation
because individuals are trained and famliar with the
environmental conditions and their roots are in the state. He
explained that there is a tendency to |lose individuals who are
not used to the harsh climates.

8:32: 50 AM
ROBERT BALDWN, Vice Chair, Alaska Science and Technol ogy and
Director, |Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers

(TEEE), testified in support of SB 107. He explained that high
enrol l ment demand is best nmet in the |locale where it exists and
direct access is extrenely inportant for students considering an
education in engineering. He explained that the |ack of space
and equi pnent can threaten the accreditation of a university and
could cause sonme of Alaska's brightest students to |eave the
state. He said "we cannot afford to continue to ship this vita

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- April 6, 2011



resource outside Al aska to benefit other states.” He explained
that a stable engineering workforce conposed of resident
Al askans has immedi ate economc benefits for the state and a
| arge potential to provide innovative new products, businesses,
and industries.

8:36: 23 AM

JACK WLBUR, President, Design Al aska, testified in support of
SB 107. He said that he attended UAF and has been practicing
engineering in Alaska for 40 years. He explained that UAF
desperately needs expanded engineering facilities in order to
neet the ever-expandi ng need for engineers in the state. He said
that Design Al aska, an architectural and surveying firm depends
heavily on UAF to provide the growing firm wth engineering
graduates. There are eighteen Design Alaska engineers who are
UAF graduates, nine of its enployees are currently seeking UAF
under graduat e engi neering degrees, and two of its enployees are
seeking UAF graduate degrees in engineering. He wurged the
commttee to support SB 107.

8:38: 16 AM

STEPHANI E YOUNG, Student, College of Engineering and M ning,
University of Al aska Fairbanks, testified in support of SB 107.
She explained that she is a senior-level civil engineering
student graduating in My. She said that she is an exanple of
t he successful engineering program at UAF and a witness to the
growh of the program She stressed the need to expand the
facilities for UAF s engineering program including both lab and
cl assroom space.

8:39:19 AM

St ephen Nuss, Vice President, Anchorage Branch, Anerican Society
of CGvil Engineering (ASCE) testified in support of SB 107. He
said he is very famliar with the facilities at both UAF and
UAA. He explained that investnment into these two facilities is
needed and the return to the Alaska's future wll be
significant. He noted that as Alaska's infrastructure ages the
need for engineers to plan, perform and oversee its renewal
w Il be necessary.

He added that for ASCE s sunmer internship program there were
ei ghteen applicants, wth five of the applicants attending
college out-of-state. He opined that the passage of SB 107,
which will provide investnment to these facilities, will attract
and retain the best and brightest students who wll |ead
Al aska's devel opnent into the future.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- April 6, 2011



8:41: 05 AM

ANNE BROCKS, representing herself, Anchorage, Al aska testified
in support of SB 107. She said that both ASCE and the Institute
of Transportation Engineers are concerned about the aging
infrastructure in Alaska. She reiterated the inportance of
"growing our own" engineers in Al aska. She explained that,
according to the US. Arny Corps of Engineers (USACE), nore
often than not, engineers brought to the state will only stay
for their three-year conmmtnent before |eaving, at a |oss of
$70,000 to USACE per year, per person. This is not sustainable.
She stressed that the funding involved in SB 107 would be a
smart investnment. She concurred with M. Baldwin's testinony
that "we are at a crisis level." She explained that since she
graduated from UAA in 1988 and aside from the ANSEP [ Al aska
Native Science & Engineering Prograni building and the
I ntegrated Science building, the facilities have changed very
little. Today, students are working in substandard conditions
for a major university. She urged the conmttee to support SB
107.

8:44:34 AM

LEVERETTE HOOVER, representing hinself, Anchor age, Al aska
testified in support of SB 107. He noted that he is the genera
manager of Sienmens Buil ding Technology, is on the advisory board
for the D anond Engineering Acadeny and Lathrop Engineering
Acadeny, and on the Board of Directors for the School Business
Partnershi ps for the Anchorage School District. He added that he
is also an adjunct professor for the University of Al aska
Anchorage at Mat-Su College. He said that all of his points have
been summarized by previous testinony. He explained that five
years ago Sienens Building Technology invested noney to start
t he engi neering academ es at Di anond and Lathrop H gh School. He
added that the <corporation has invested a quarter mllion
dollars over the last five years to recruit engineers from out-

of -state and none of those engineers are still located in the
state.
8:46: 39 AM

JIMLITTLE, Cvil Engineer and Menber, Advisory Council, College
of Engineering and Mning, testified in support of SB 107. He
said UAF has a wonderful team of engineering professors who are
extrenely exceptional in the educational process and their
i nvol venent with the comunity. He stressed that SB 107 would
give the faculty the tools to continue doing so.

8:48: 25 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- April 6, 2011



MARGARET YNGVE, Student, College of Engineering and M ning,
University of Al aska Fairbanks, testified in support of SB 107.
She expl ained that she is a student in the Mning and Geol ogi cal
program at UAF. She said that in the last year the departnent
has experienced substantial growh. She explained that three
years ago she was the only freshman entering into geol ogical
engineering and she wll be graduating wth 13 other
i ndi viduals. She explained that in the |ast year the departnent
has experienced the |loss of all student engineering club spaces
and student study areas to make room for nore classroons. She
continued that the geohydrology lab has, essentially, becone
warm storage and the geomaterial lab is a 7 by 14 foot roomwth
no w ndows.

8:50: 24 AM

BEN  LARUE, G oup  Operations Manager , Si enens Bui | di ng
Technol ogy, testified in support of SB 107. He explained that he
has been directly involved with UAF for the past 15 years both
as a student and as an enployer through Sienens. He stressed
that Sienens needs engineers that are locally trained and this
is the best tine to invest in the engineering prograns at UA

8:51:21 AM

RI CHARD HUGHES, Menber, Advisory and Devel opnent Council,
College of Engineering and M ning, University of Alaska
Fai rbanks testified in support of SB 107.

8:52: 07 AM

ROGER BURGGRAF, representing hinself, testified in support of SB
107. He explained that he works in the mning industry and
enpl oys nunerous geol ogical engineers who have graduated from
UAF. He said with the growth and need of engineers in order to
build Alaska's future it is inportant to have the facilities
that will enable UA to graduate quality engi neers.

8:53:19 AM
CO CHAIR THOVAS announced he would keep public testinony open
and hold SB 107 in comm ttee.

8:53:49 AM

There being no further business to cone before the committee,
Co- Chair Thomas adjourned the neeting at 8:53 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- April 6, 2011



